CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - MARCH 1, 2016

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on March 1, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Gerald Bright, Chairman
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Tom Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Ken Southard, Alternate

MEMBER ABSENT: Ron Taylor, Vice Chair
Stephen Springs, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Planning
Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner
Mohamed Bireima, Planner
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of February 16, 2016.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second
by Commissioner Frederick. Motion approved 7-0.

VARIANCE

2. Variance 16-01 — Campbell Plaza: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a variance from Chapter 21, Subdivision and Development Code, for a modified
parking ratio for an existing multi-tenant retail center. The site is located at 581 Campbell Road
and is zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail.

Mr. Bireima gave a brief history of the property and advised the applicant was requesting to
modify the parking ratio to allow more flexibility when trying to attract tenants to the retail
center. He added there were 91 parking spaces available, which would only allow for retail and
office uses but would restrict a restaurant use from occupying space in the center.

Mr. Bireima stated there had been two previous parking variances: a 12 space variance in 1994

and a 13 space variance in 2013. In addition, the applicant submitted a parking study and staff
confirmed the information showing the demand did not exceed the available spaces.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-16Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 1, 2016

Mr. Bireima concluded his presentation by noting the applicant was requesting a modified
parking ratio of 1 space per 250 square feet of floor area, which would require 90 parking
spaces and 91 spaces were currently available.

Chairman Bright called for any questions for staff and with none, called for a motion.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 16-01 as
presented; second by Commissioner Ferrell. Motion approved 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

3. Zoning File 16-03 — Four Seasons Market: Consider and take necessary action on a request
for approval of a Special Permit for a temporary open air market to be located at 101 S. Coit
Road, southeast corner of Coit Road and Belt Line Road. The property is currently zoned C-M
Commercial.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting approval of a Special Permit for a temporary
open air market at the southeast corner of Belt Line and Coit Roads. He added the market
would be similar to the market at Campbell Road and Nantucket Drive that operates on
Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. with the exception the proposed market would operate
only on Sundays.

Mr. Shacklett indicated the temporary open air market would be located along the eastern edge
of the parking lot in front of the Richardson Mercantile with a maximum of 48 vendors and a
requirement that a minimum of 40 percent of those individuals would be food vendors. In
addition, there would be limitations on vendor concession spaces as well as food truck areas.

Regarding the available parking, Mr. Shacklett noted the site was over parked by 19 spaces
taking into account all the tenants on site; however, with the market taking up approximately
165 spaces (maximum), a 146 space deficiency would be created. He added that the applicant
had conducted a parking study on a number of Sundays and out of the 803 parking spaces there
were never more than 417 spaces occupied.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting that no correspondence had been received
and highlighted the six conditions recommended by staff.

Commissioner Frederick asked if there had been a conversation with the applicant to have the
market in a north/south alignment as opposed to an east/west alignment to allow the aisle
running parallel to Coit Road to remain open.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the alignment was north/south it would create a problem with traffic
having to back up at a difficult angle then drive out that same way they came in, which could

cause traffic movement concerns for the site.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-03-01CPCMinutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 1, 2016

Mr. Vincent Hirth, Four Seasons Market, 3206 Christie Circle, Garland, Texas, said that if
approved, the proposed market would not be as large as the market on Campbell Road because
it would be a Sunday Only market and those tend to be smaller in size.

Commissioner Roland asked the applicant if he had spoken with any of the other tenants in the
retail center and would he be in competition with any of those stores.

Mr. Hirth replied the Weitzman Group, who owns the center, did speak with the tenants and the
tenants were in favor of the request because the market would bring more traffic to the site.

Commissioner Southard pointed out that two weekends a year the Cottonwood Festival was held
at the nearby Cottonwood Park and many of the attendees park at the retail center and asked if
the applicant would consider not operating on those weekends.

Mr. Hirth said the Weitzman Group did not have an agreement in place with the operators of the
Cottonwood Festival and, since the property in question was private property, the market would
have first choice of the parking spaces. However, if the Sunday market was causing concerns
for the festival, they would consider closing on those two dates.

With no other comments or questions in favor or opposed, Chairman Bright closed the public
hearing.

Commissioner DePuy asked to clarify the applicant’s intent to operate his market throughout the
Cottonwood Festival during the first year and close the 2" year if there were concerns.

Chairman Bright said he understood that was what Mr. Hirth was saying, but noted that if the
item was approved “as 1s” the closing would be at Mr. Hirth’s discretion. Staff confirmed that
was their understanding of the applicant’s statement as well.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 16-03
as presented; second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

4. Zoning File 15-33 — Residences on Duck Creek Trail (continued from February 2, and 16,
2016 meetings): Consider and take necessary action on a request for a change in zoning from
R-1800-M Residential to PD Planned Development to accommodate the development of a
maximum 60-unit apartment community. The 4.4 acre site is located at 700 N. Plano Road, east
side of Plano Road south of Arapaho Road.

Chairman Bright announced the applicant had requested a continuation to the March 15, 2016,
meeting and added that no new information had been presented to the Commission.

Chairman Bright acknowledged the public hearing was still open and called for anyone who
wanted to make a comment in favor or opposed. He also noted that 9 appearance cards had
been submitted from individuals opposed to the item who did not wish to speak before the
Commission.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-03-01CPCMinutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 1, 2016

The following individuals spoke in opposition to Item 4 stating concerns over privacy,
aesthetics, traffic flow, home values, impact to Duck Creek and frustration over requested
continuations:

Dr. Nancy Smith, 1512 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas 75081
Mr. Michael Smith, 1512 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas 75081
Mr. Anthony Rice, 1505 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas 75081
Mr. Will Riley, 1707 Valcourt Drive, Richardson, Texas 75081

Ms. Pam Strauss, 1704 Piper Court, Richardson, Texas 75081

Ms. Andrea Suk, 1707 Valcourt Drive, Richardson, Texas 75081

Chairman Bright asked the applicant if he had any rebuttal comments.

Mr. Travis Thompson, Twin Rivers Capital, 1400 Preston Road, Dallas, Texas, said he
appreciated the Commission’s time and asked the Commissioners to approve his request to
continue the public hearing to March 15, 2016.

Commissioner Roland acknowledged the frustration felt by the homeowners regarding the
requested continuance and asked the applicant if he thought one more continuation would be
sufficient to complete the plans.

Mr. Travis replied that he felt certain the plans could be completed in time for the March 15,
2016 meeting and, if they were not, he would not ask for another continuation but would ask for
a withdrawal of the item.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the requested continuation of the

public hearing to March 15, 2016; second by Commissioner Southard. Motion
approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Bright adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:54 p.m.

Gerald Bright, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-03-01CPCMinutes.doc 4





